The first jail building, as hereinafter shown, has been given by the county to William and Vashti College, and the part of it which contained the cells has been demolished and rebuilt, and it is now used as the girls' dormitory in connection with William and Vashti College. The building erected by the county for county officers is also now transferred to William and Vashti College, and is situated on the block known as North Park or Monument Park in Aledo.
On March 13, 1897, William Drury died at his home, Verdurette, in this county, aged nearly eighty-eight years. He had come to the county first in 1833, but had returned to Indiana and the following year came back and took up a claim and settled down near the Bluff. In 1840 he returned to Indiana, married Vashti Lewis, daughter of Caleb and Polly (Willits) Lewis, and brought her to their house in this county.

The will provided that all of his property should be held during the lifetime of his wife for her benefit, she to have the income thereof until her death, and thereupon the property should all be converted into money for the establishment of an institution of learning which was to be named William and Vashti College, to be established in the town of Mercer County which would subscribe the largest amount for its location and support.

On September 16, 1908, the institution was duly opened with an enrollment of sixty students and with the following faculty: President, T. J. Davis; professor of mathematics, W. R. Woodmansee ; professor of Latin and Greek, L. B. Mitchell; professor of German and French, Eric Greenfield; instructor in music, Josephine E. Moore. The institution was named "William and Vashti," which were the given names of Mr. Drury, the donor, and his wife. In 1909 Drury Academy was established as a preparatory school for the students who designed to enter the college. The enrollment of the college has been as follows: 1908-9, 98; 1909-10, 141; 1910-11, 285 ; 1911-12, 301 ; 1912-13, 272.

For the last three or four years the people of Rock Island have heard flattering reports from the school located at Aledo, known as William and Vashti college. Attention was first attracted to the school by reason of its successes in all departments of college activity.  The interest thus attracted caused the people of this section of the state to take more particular notice of the institution, and it was discovered that the citizens of Aledo and Mercer county through their enterprise, devotion and determination had in less than five years accomplished what it has taken other communities similarly situated generations to bring about. While Aledo has shown much enterprise in various lines and has now become known as one of the most progressive cities of its size in the state, its greatest accomplishment is what it has done for this college. Everyone is interested in a story of achievement, and The Argus presents to its readers the interesting story of the founding and establishment of this college as a portrayal of public spirit that may well be emulated. 

No doubt many who have heard of this school have wondered as to the origin of its name. The school was founded by William Drury, a long time resident of Mercer county, and was named by him in his will as William and Vashti college to commemorate the memory of himself and his wife, Vashti Drury. 

By the will of Mr. Drury the school was to be located in that city or town of Mercer county which would offer the largest bonus for its location. The city of Aledo, having offered more than any other locality in the county, secured the school. The purpose of Mr. Drury was to found a non-denominational school where the student could not only secure a complete classical or scientific education, but where he could also secure such practical instruction as would fit him for some particular employment. 

Mr. Drury died leaving a considerable estate.  By his will he provided that his wife should have the use of all of his property during her lifetime and at her death, after paying some specific bequests it should go to the founding of this school.  Mrs. Drury saw fit after some consideration to decline to accept the provisions of the will, and as there were no children, under the law, she was permitted to take one-half of the estate. That necessitated an immediate division of the estate and permitted the portion going to the school to be used at once. 

The will provided that certain of the officials of Mercer County and of the city of Aledo should constitute the board of trustees.  After reducing the estate to cash the board had a little over $100,000.  It was deemed wise to invest all this money in ground, buildings and equipment, which was done. A campus of about 16 acres was acquired and the main college building, a boys' dormitory, a gymnasium, a heating plant and residence for the president were erected. 

After constructing these buildings and equipping them and providing for all necessary apparatus the money in the hands of the trustees was exhausted, and the board had on its hands a thoroughly equipped plant, but was without any funds in the way of an endowment and with no means of paying expenses except by such tuition as might be paid by prospective students. The situation was not at all encouraging, but in September of 1908 the college was opened with Thomas J. Davis, of Indianapolis, as president. Mr. Davis, together with the board, has selected a strong faculty to work with him, and the first year witnessed the enrollment of about 200 students in all departments. 

It was soon discovered that in order to sustain the standard established by the school it would be necessary to have other revenue than that furnished by the tuition alone. Under the provisions of the will of William Drury the personnel of the board changed rapidly, and for that and other reasons affecting the legal status of any gifts which might be made to the institution, it was decided to incorporate under the laws of Illinois. This was done, and a permanent board of seven representative citizens of Aledo was selected and now manages the school. 

One of the first things undertaken by the new board was the raising of an endowment fund. It was estimated that with an endowment of $200,000 the school could be put on a permanent footing and be assured of a perpetual existence. It was determined to start the endowment campaign by raising $100,000 in the city of Aledo and Mercer Township, in which that city is located. As the city of Aledo contains something less than 2,500 inhabitants and does not boast of any men who would be rated as wealthy, it will be seen that this was a big undertaking. In the summer of 1911 a vigorous campaign was prosecuted by the board of trustees together with Dr. Frank C. English, who had then succeeded Professor Davis as the president of the college, and something more than $100,000 was raised, principally in the city of Aledo. Over 750 persons subscribed to this fund so that practically every family in Aledo was represented and now feels that it has a financial interest in the school. This was one of the objects sought to be obtained by the board of trustees, as it was thought that no firmer or more lasting friends could be secured for the institution than those who had contributed to this fund. The board of trustees at once inaugurated a campaign to raise the remaining $100,000 in Mercer County outside of the city of Aledo, and considerable progress has been made toward that end. 

A great deal of credit is due to President English for the success of the endowment campaign and for the fine spirit which prevails not only among those closely connected with the school but among the citizens generally of Mercer County. Dr. English was employed in the spring of 1911, coming from the city of Cincinnati, where he had been president of the Cincinnati training school. Prior to that time he was president of Moore's Hill College, Indiana. He is a graduate of Baldwin University where he took his bachelor's degree, later receiving his master's degree from Ohio Wesleyan University. He did graduate work in the University of Cincinnati and later received his degree of doctor of divinity. 

Since the opening of the school the trustees have acquired a building for the conservatory of music, and during the coming summer it is proposed to erect a girls' dormitory, the plans for its erection being now under way. 

Carrying out the idea of Mr. Drury, in addition to the regular college course, which is equal to that found in any small college, there has been established a department of music, a business department, a department of agriculture and a normal department. In addition to these there will be instituted next year a course in domestic science. 

The attendance has steadily increased since the opening of the school until now there are about 300 students enrolled in all departments. A preparatory course is run in connection with the college and under the same management. 

Perhaps no better conception can be given of what this school has accomplished than to use the language of Dr. Nathaniel Butler of Chicago University, when he visited the institution a little over a year ago in response to a request for recognition of the school on the part of Chicago University. After having visited the school and becoming familiar with the situation, Mr. Butler said: "I came here expecting to find a feeble school asking for recognition as a last resort, but instead of that I have found a new, vigorous, up-to-date institution asking for recognition because it feels it would thus secure a larger sphere of usefulness. There is no question, at the rate it is going, but that it will continue to be recognized, because people must and will recognize that which is being done well. I will state frankly that the personnel of the student body and the character of the institution is far ahead of anything I had expected to see." 

Anyone who had simply heard of the institution and knew that it had begun operations as recently as 1908, and that without any endowment fund whatever, would naturally feel as Dr. Butler did before he went to Aledo, but the most casual investigation will convince anyone of the correctness of Dr. Butler's statement. 

The students of the college are provided with all that goes to make college life desirable and profitable. The customary literary societies flourish, a Young Men's and Young Women's Christian association, the glee club, the oratorical societies and the press club are all well attended and excite a lively interest. 

The institution is justly proud of the record it has made in athletics, not only because of the victories it has won, but because of the fact that its athletics have always been conducted on the highest possible plane, and the standard of eligibility for participation in athletic contests is of the highest. In order to participate in any intercollegiate contest a student must carry at least 12 hours of college work and be in good standing in all the work carried. 

From the first, athletics have been encouraged and the faculty has had close oversight and supervision of all the teams, one of the professors having charge of football, one of baseball and track and one of basketball. Athletic relations have been sustained with such schools as Augustana, Hedding, Lombard, Knox, Monmouth, Bradlev, Illinois Wesleyan, Iowa Wesleyan, Millikin, Illinois College, Shurtleff, Lake Forest, Armour institute, etc., and the showing which has been made is one in which every friend of the school may take pride. The success of the school on the athletic field is particularly gratifying for the reason that many of the best athletes who have represented the school have been boys who were born and raised in Mercer county, and many of them would have been unable to attend college and thus have an opportunity of participating in college athletics were it not for the fact that this school is located in Mercer county. 

The athletic teams for the present year have all been strong. This is especially true of the football team which played eight games and won them all by decisive scores, thus acquiring the undisputed title of state champions. The prospect for football for the coming year is very encouraging. In basketball the team captured six out of ten games of the regular schedule, winning all of the games on the home floor. 

The baseball team for the coming year promises to be as good as, if not better, than any in the history of the school, which considering the triumphs of the teams in the past, is speaking well for it. This year the baseball team will meet such teams as Augustana, Lombard, Hedding, Bradley, Illinois Wesleyan, Millikin and Illinois. 

Many individual stars have been developed in track work in the past and some unusual work is expected from among the 300 students enrolled this year. Track meets will be held this year with Augustana at Rock Island, Bradley at Peoria, and the state meet at Peoria, May 24. The athletic spirit in the college is of the best and the slogan has always been, "Honorable defeat is preferable to stolen victory." 

The athletic field on the campus is well drained and has a splendid baseball diamond and football field and a one-fifth mile track with 120-yard straightaway. The gymnasium is equipped with physical apparatus, baseball cage and a basketball floor 45x74 feet of playing space with a 22-foot ceiling. These facilities together with tennis courts afford the best there is in the way of recreation and physical exercises. 

One proof of the unusual success which William and Vashti College has attained is the way in which it is regarded by the other small colleges of Illinois and adjoining states. At the time of the opening of the school in 1908, and for some time thereafter, William and Vashti was regarded by its sister colleges with indifference. No attention whatever was paid to the college and no comment was made concerning its work except to conjecture as to how long it would be able to eke out an existence. Its athletic triumphs first attracted attention and then it demonstrated its prowess along educational lines by splendid showings in competitive debates and oratorical contests. 

Before the school was two years old it was attracting marked attention from other colleges and was being observed somewhat more critically. Now it is regarded by all of the small colleges as a real rival in every sphere of action. 

In 1910 Drury academy was placed on the accredited list with Illinois University; in 1911 with the North Central association of schools and colleges; and in 1912 with Chicago University. The college department has kept pace with the academy in this particular and has received corresponding recognition. In 1911 the college was admitted to the Illinois Athletic association, and the same year to the State Federation of Colleges. Such recognition in the short space of time since the opening of the school is unprecedented and is the highest possible proof that the college and academy have taken their places among the substantial institutions of the state. 

The splendid college spirit and feeling of loyalty that prevails among the student body can be attributed to a great extent to the friendly interest the people of Mercer County and of Aledo feel in the institution. It is easy to inspire a feeling of loyalty to his alma mater in the breast of the average student, and with the deep interest of every citizen of Aledo in constant evidence this feeling has become as intense as that which prevails among the students of the oldest universities and colleges. 

One of the chief assets of the college and one of the things which will do more to achieve the final success of the institution than anything else is the city of Aledo itself. Aledo is the county seat of Mercer County and is located in the center of one of its fine prairies. 

It has no large commercial industries, and none of its citizens will take offense to the statement of the fact that it is in many respects an overgrown country village. Its citizens are of the most substantial and desirable type. Its merchants are up-to-date and afford the people of Aledo and the surrounding country the best trading facilities that can be found in any city of its size in the country. 

Some years ago the city adopted and installed a system of sewers, and last year a local improvement was authorized which contemplates the paving of five miles of its principal streets. A part of this work was completed last season and the remainder will be completed by the month of July of this year. The business part of the city is brilliantly lighted by up-to-date electric cluster lights. The last session of congress appropriated the sum of $65,000 for the erection of a government building there, which shows that for a town of its size a considerable volume of business is being transacted. There is every assurance that within the next year a splendid new public library will be erected in the city and opened for the use of its citizens and the students of the college and public schools. Five different church denominations maintain thrifty organizations within the city, all owning valuable church property. They are the Presbyterian, Methodist Episcopal, United Presbyterian, Baptist and Catholic. 

There have been no saloons in the city of Aledo for more than 40 years. The city in its makeup, environment and in the conditions existing, makes an ideal location for an educational institution. 

While the people of Aledo and Mercer County are endeavoring to make this school particularly a county institution, students are welcomed from all sections, and among the present number enrolled are boys and girls from various other states as well as from all portions of the state of Illinois. The school offers advantages equal to that of any of the small colleges of the Middle West, and its surroundings are such that it would be hard to find a better place to send a boy or girl to secure that part of their education which must be secured away from home. 

What the people of Aledo have done and accomplished for their college stands almost unparalleled. It is doubtful if there has ever been a community of equal size in the United States which has with such a spirit and with such unanimity among its citizens done as much for any public enterprise. An institution thus founded among such ardent friends will necessarily attain the highest degree of success, and The Argus predicts for William and Vashti College of Aledo a brilliant future.
